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THE MONASTERIES OF ST. THADDEUS
THE APOSTLE AND ST. STEPANNOS NAKHAVKA

ARMEN HAGHNAZARIAN




«Gphhp L Wwlnip» ququwybpuniphiGp hhdGunply £ 1977 p. Qw-
phqnud Gbnuy G-LnltwGh gwlplpny:

Guquwbpympbwl Guuuwlyl b whhinpwhwy tppuwuwpnlbnh
dwulwligmpbwdp YbpuwlulqGl; hwjjujwl dwpnwpuwybhnnpbwl
dunwlgmphillbpp L npw shongm] wqquijhlG wunuGbhniphilp wu-
npuglby Gpnubg dte: «Gphhp L dpwlngp»-h wnwehlG dpugnpbpp dtnGhply-
i L6 Mwpuljwunwih Unpyuwumwluwl GuhwlqGhpnd qubnn Up.
Owntnu Unwpbwih L Up. UnbihwGnu Gwjuu]fuih yulpbpnd, hls-
wktu Gul Umphny Leuwph Up. Unbithwnu Ghbnbgnig:

Suyjwuuwlh hwlpuwybnmphiind wpfuunwlplbppn  uluby b0
1988 p. bipypuwpwndhg jlnng L Jbpwlulqbity nqumubh Up. Quuiw-
owohl tyknkghl, Swplh Up. UhGwu tybntghlG L Uwnunuwijulph qb-
nhglunbupy hwdwihpp: Upgwfunid Japwlnpnqiby b0 Lwphluwl ghi-
nh Wwlnjph wnilp, nupngl nt Lhbnbghl:

Land and Culture Organisation was established in 1977 in Paris with
the effort of Gegham Gevonian.

The Organisation pursues the objective of engaging the Diaspora youth
in the reconstruction of the Armenian architectural heritage in order to
strengthen the feelings of national identity among them. The first projects of
the Organisation have been initiated in the Monasteries of Saint Thaddeus
and Saint Stepanos of Nakhavka, located in the Azerbaijani provinces of
Iran, as well as in the Saint Stepanos Church in Kesab, Syria.

Following the earthquake in 1988 the Organisation extended its activ-
ities to Armenia proper. The Organisation has contributed to the recon-
struction of the Virgin Mary Church in Gogaran. Repairs have been under-
taken at the Saint Minas Church of Tatev and the Magnificent complex of
Sagmosavank. In the Karintag village of Artsakh the cultural centre,
the school and the church have been repaired with the engagement of
the Organisation.
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The Monastery of Thaddeus
the Apostle

Geographic  location.The
Monastery is located in the Artaz
District of Vaspourakan province
of Historic Armenia, 23 kilometres
away from the town of Maku, at
1830 metres above sea level. The
Armenian historian Movses of
Khoren names the district
“Shavarshakan”. The Artaz or
Ake’ district now corresponds to
the Maku district of the Iranian
province of Azerbaidjan
(Atrpatagan in Armenian), which
extends from the Massis mountain
(Lesser Ararat) to the south-east,
up to Her and Zarehvand districts
(today Khoy and Salmas).

Historic background.
According to Armenian sources
the establishment of the Monastery
relates to the years 40-41 AD,
when the two disciples of Jesus
Christ, Apostles St. Thaddeus and
St.  Bartholomew travelled to
Armenia in order to preach
Christianity. In Armenia the King
Sanatroug and his daughter
Sandoukht embraced Christianity
but after a short period under the
influence of political considera-
tions the King renounced
Christianity, reverting to the pagan
religion and started to persecute
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the Christians. St Thaddeus and St.
Bartholomew succumbed to this
persecution and were martyred.
The King did not even spare his
daughter — the Virgin Sandoukht,
who refused to renounce her new
faith.! The followers of Christ
buried the remains of St. Thaddeus
in a grave near the place of his
martyrdom and the body of Virgin
Sandoukht was laid to rest on the
top of a nearby hill.

According to the 5th century
historians, the district of Artaz has
had its own diocese whose lead-
ers, Fathers Zakarya and Stepan as
well as Bishop Israel are named.
However, there is no information
regarding the Monastery itself.

Hovhan Mamikonian con-
firms that the remains of St.
Thaddeus are located in the Artaz
district of Vaspurakan.” The 5th
century chroniclers Eghishe
(Elishe) and Ghazar Parbetsi
(Lazar of Parb) in their descrip-
tion of the battle of Avarair,
known as the Vardanantz Battle,
do not mention this Monastery.
This implies that the believers,
having kept the name of the
Apostle Thaddeus in living mem-
ory and tradition, built the
Monastery some centuries later,
possibly on the foundations of an
existing heathen temple.
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At the beginning of the 8th
century, during the reign of Princes
Hovnan Odznetzi and Vahan
Mamikonian, the remains of St.
Thaddeus and Virgin Sandoukht
were discovered.’ St. Thaddeus is
mentioned by Tovma Ardzrouni in
the early part of the 10th century,
more detailed information is given
by S. Anetzi a century later. More
detailed information about the
Monastery can be found in the
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Armenian literature and memoirs
of various travellers from the 10th
century onwards.

In 1247 The Catholicos of All
Armenians Costanin Bardzerber-
dtsi decreed on the boundaries of
the Monastery and its adjacent
lands.* He subsequently sent pre-
sents to the Monastery in recogni-
tion of the honourable service of
the Monks. Taking advantage of
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the favourable conditions of peace
the Catholicos has also rendered
financial assistance to Father
Superior Hovsep in order to con-
tribute to the repairs of the earlier
damages inflicted on the
Monastery by the Selucide Turks
and the Georgians. In order to con-
tinue the repairs during the rule of
the Moguls, Father Hovsep seeks
the favour of Commander
Anagurak Nouin. Such favour was
of particular importance as the
summer residence of the Mogul
Commander was located in the
vicinity of the Monastery. With
such favour granted, Father
Hovsep dedicates himself entirely
to the completion of the repair
works.’

The importance of the
Monastery is further underlined by
the fact that in 1285 Levon III, the
Armenian King of Cilicia, who had
travelled to Atropatene for negotia-
tions with the Mogul Arghun
Khan, visited the Monastery
accompanied by Thoros the
Philosopher, whose head at the
time was Bishop Der Diratzu.®
With its restoration the Monastery
renewed its intellectual activities
as well. Regretfully only few of the
manuscripts from the Monastery
have survived to our times. The
oldest among them is a manuscript
created by writer Restakesi in
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around 1315, at the time of leader-
ship of Father Superior Zakaria.’

Under more than two cen-
turies of Mogul rule the Monastery
was destroyed many times and was
heavily taxed. The earthquake of
the year 1319 completely ruined
the Monastery, where 75 of the
monks also perished. Chamchian
writes, “there was a great quake
which destroyed the Monastery
and the Church as well as many
houses”.*

The work of reconstructing
the Monastery took ten years and
the reconstruction was completed
in 1329. Inscriptions about this
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Kafayetzi undertook further repair
work in the church, the southern,
partly western and northern
monastic cells were also repaired.
He also enlarged the utilities and
fortified the walls of the
Monastery. These works were car-
ried out during the years 1692-
1694.

The Monastery suffered new
damages as a result of the earth-
quake in 1696, though fortunately
there were no human losses."”
Further damages were inflicted
during the renewed Turkish-
Persian wars of 1734. A water mill
with adjacent granary were erected
in 1787, the spring well was
repaired in 1793. The wooden
cross was replaced by one made of
stone in 1794. In 1819 Father
Superior Simeon Bznouni, after
obtaining permission from the
Persian Viceroy Abbas Mirza
removed the western fazade of the
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church and built an adjoining
church with white stones. By 1820
the church was complete and only
the belfry and the roof of the apses
were not completed.

In 1827, as a result of the
Treaty of Turkomanachai, the terri-
tories of the Monasery were left
inside Persia. Subsequently more
than 40,000 Armenians of the
Atrpatagan (Azerbaijan) district
abandoned their ancestral homes
and moved to the north of the
Araxes River, into the Russian
held territories. The 80 Armenian
villages around the town of Maku,
some of which belonged to the
Monastery were left derelict.

Stripped of its income, the
Monastery of St. Thaddeus and the
Monastery of St. Stepannos (which
was in the same predicament) were
merged in 1841 with the approval
of Holy Echmiadzin. They came

11
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under the jurisdiction of the
Diocese of Atrpatagan, having its
centre in the city of Tabriz.

Between the end of the 19th
century and the beginning of the
World War One, the Monastery
was known under its pseudonym
“The Lonely Monastery”, for it
served as an underground transit
point for the armed Armenian
irregulars on their way to
Vaspourakan. In June 1918 the
Ottoman regulars joined by the
soldiers of the Khan of Maku as
well as the Kurdish hoards sur-
rounded the Monastery, where the
Armenian population of the sur-
rounding villages had found
refuge. The Armenians defended
themselves for 33 days, until their
ammunition ran out and on July
the 2nd the Turks breached the for-
tifications. A wholesale massacre
of the defendants followed, with a

few women and children
being spared, who were taken into
slavery. The Church and its trea-
sury were pillaged and the impor-
tant symbol of the Monastery, the
right hand of St. Thaddeus went
missing. After the War some
Armenian families from the sur-
rounding villages, who had mirac-
ulously survived the genocide
returned to the Monastery and
lived in the cells until 1946, when
they were repatriated to Armenia.
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The last Father Superior of the
Monastery, Father Kajberouni

Petros Ghazarian moved to Tabriz,
where he died in 1948.

In 1954, the Armenian
Diocese of Atrpatagan arranged
the first pilgrimage to St. Thaddeus
Monastery, which took place dur-
ing the Saints name day at the end
of the month of July. This pilgrim-
age acted as the starting point for
the renovation of the Monastery in
1969-70. The repairs were carried
out under the supervision of the
Iranian Governmental organisation
of “Mirase Farhangi” (Cultural
Heritage). Part of the funds for the
renovation work were provided by
the Paris based Land and Culture
Organisation (Organization Terre
et Culture), who as of 1976 started
its relentless campaign concerning
the importance of the Monastery
and the need for the reconstruction
work.

From 1988 onwards, the
“Mirase  Farhangi” and the
Armenian Diocesan Committee
appointed for the supervision of
the reconstruction work, are jointly
managing the reconstruction and
repair work in the Monastery.

The Architecture. The
Monastery is surrounded by fortifi-
cations, having eight round towers

15
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at its corners. The complex is
divided into two sections, one part
includes the Church and the cells,
and the other part has the service
area as well as the oil press, the
kitchen and the stores.

After the earthquake of 1319
the church has been reconstructed
with finely finished dark basalt
slabs. The exterior of the church is
rectangular but the interior is
cross-shaped, with a central dome
and the main altar flanked on both
sides with vestries. The vertical
aspect of the church is accentuated
by the drum, supported with 12
columns and topped with the coni-
cal capped dome.

In order to expand the church,
the western wall of the church and
the belfry were demolished in
1819 and were replaced with
another church, the replica of Holy
Echmiadzin, connected to the old
church. This new church too has a
drum with 12 supporting columns
and a conical dome, but is con-
structed with white stones, brought
from a quarry near the village of
Kurch-Bulakh. Only the belfry to
the west of the church and the roof
of the apses are left incomplete.

In contrast with the sombre
and simple exterior of the old
church, the new white church has
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qiptipny dwwninp” Up. ‘Lwhw-
nwlwg L wybtih thnppp Up.
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elaborate decorative carvings on
the exterior. These can be divided
into four categories. At the lower
lever, the sections of the walls, sur-
rounded by arched columns are
mainly decorated with Khachkars
(stone-crosses) and “tree of life”
carvings. Further up the church has
two belts of carvings, one purely
with botanical designs & the other
with carvings depicting daily life
and scenes from mythology. At the
next level, separated with cornices,
stand the figures of the saints, sep-
arated by wall columns. The
uppermost part is relatively simple
and ends with yet another cornice.

The influence of the Islamic
Safavid architecture can be noted
in some of the details of the carv-
ings of the white church. Here the
influence of the carvings of the
10th century Holy Cross Cathedral
of Aghtamar Monastery near Van
is particularly noticeable.

To the north of the Monastery,
on a hill there stand two chapels,
together with the ruin of the third
one. The chapel next to the rock
with a semicircular dome is called
the Holy Martyr and the other,
smaller one is called Holy Mother
of God. Near the Monastery, in the
once Armenian village of
Gharakilisse (in Turkish - the
Black Church) the small village
church is still intact. To the south
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of the Monastery, on the top of a
hill stands the famous Chapel of
“Virgin Sandoukht™.

1”Manr Zhamanakagroutunner”,
Volum II, Yerevan, 1956, p. 314

2 Hovhan Mamikonian, “History of
Taron”, Yerevan, 1989, p. 32

3 "Manr Zhamanakagroutunner”,
Volum I, Yerevan, 1951, p. 203

4 Kirakos Gandzaketsi, “The
Armenian History”, Yerevan,
1961, p. 311

5 Kirakos Gandzaketsi, “The
Armenian History”, Yerevan,
1961, p. 311

6 H. Voskean, “The Monastries of
Vaspourakan - Van”, Volume II,
Vienna, 1942, p. 470

7 “Register of Armenian Manuscripts
of the XIV century”, Yerevan,
1950, p. 114

8. “Historical records collected by
Father Samvel of Ani”,
Vagarshapat, 1893, p. 157

9. “Manr Zhamanakagrunner”,
Volume I, Yerevan, 1951, p. 309

10. ibid, p. 284
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The Monastery of Saint
Stepannos Nakhavka, also
known as the Monastery
of Maghard or Monastery of
Darashamb

Geographic location. The
Monastery is located in the
Vaspourakan province of Historic
Armenia, which today lies in the
north of the Iranian province of
Azerbaidjan, (Atrpatagan in
Armenian). It is located 18 kilome-
tres to the West of the town of Julfa
on a slope leading towards the
river Arax.

The Monastery was built on
the foothills of the Maghard moun-
tain, on a hill covered with trees.
On the North of the monastery
across the Arax river rises the
rocky and arid mountain range of
Goghtan. The chapel of Saint
Andre’ the Son lies on the left side
of the road leading from Julfa to
the Monastery. The Armenian
cemetery of Old Julfa, with hun-
dreds of old and unique Khachkars
(Cross stones) which are as tall as
a man, lies on the northern bank of
the Arax river across the
Monastery. The architecture of this
cemetery as a whole is considered
as a unique example of late
medieval Armenian stonemasonry.
A church built in the 17th or 18th
century is the only structure still
standing where the village of
Darachamb once was. The village
of was located three kilometres to
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the West of the Monastery, where
the river Tghmut (now called
Akchay) and Arax merge.

Historic background._The
exact date of establishment of the
Monastery is not  known.
According to tradition the
Monastery was established by the
Apostle Bartholomew himself,
who was preaching in the town of
Nakhichevan, then located in the
Aghbak district of Vaspourakan
province of Armenia. He was sub-
sequently martyred in the same
town. Later on another monastery
was actually constructed on the
very spot where St Bartholomew
was martyred and which bears his
name. This was located in the
“Valley of the Armenians” (Hayots
Dzor) located in Aghbak province.

One of the first written records
about the Monastery is dated 966.
It is an inscription from the
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Monastery, which later served as a
socle for a glass cross in memory
of Shushan and her son King
Ashot.! The Holy Cross was later
moved to St Etchmiadzin. In an
encyclical by the Catholicos
Khachik Ardzrouni in the year 976
the Apostle Bartholomew is men-
tioned to be the founder of the
Monastery. Therein are also speci-
fied the land boundaries and the
tax status of the Monastery.? About
the same time King Ashot
Bagratouni the Merciful issued a
dedicatory epistle where the dioce-
ses of the Maghard Monastery are
mentioned.

The Last Will and Testament
of King Ashot’s daughter, written
in 981 mentions the churches of St
Mary Mother of God, St. George
and St. Stepannos, which were
reconstructed according to the
royal decree issued by her father.

During the "11th century
Seljuk rule information about the
monastery is scarce. In 1143 how-
ever, Stephan Orbelian gave
details of the activities within the
Monastery and mentions by name
Ter Barsegh (Basil) as the Father
Superior of the Monastery. Later
the scribe Michael the Syrian con-
firms this. On other occasions his-
torical sources mention the deposi-
tory of manuscripts and library of
the Monastery. An ivory-backed
gospel bearing the date 1178
together with the inscription of
“Monastery of Stepannos
Nakhavka” today can be found in
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the library of Holy Etchmiadzin.
There is a continuous scarcity

of information  about the
Monastery during the Mongol rule
in Armenia (13th to 15th cen-
turies). In 1270 Vardan
Bardzrabertsi mention the
Monastery in one of his studies. In
the year 1330 in a decree issued by
the Mongol ruler Abu Said Il-
Khani the Monastery land holdings
are confirmed.” Thereafter manu-



Jquywl yuwwmdniphiln:

G-nphgnp UYyGtghl 1427 p. jh-
mid £ JulplG m wjyl Ynymd
«Lpwluunp»: XV-XVI nunptphg
GplwlGh UwwmbGwnpupwind,
hGswtu Gul ‘Lnp Pninwijh gpw-
nunpwlnd yuwhimd 66 Unbthw-
(nu ‘Lwhiwyywjh Yuwlpnid
gnuuo puqiwpht dtnwqnpbp, n-
pnlp Yyyuwynud GG Julph hwib-
Jwunwpwnp owniniG yhdwyla ni
wjlwntinh hnqlnp-vpwynipwjhl
gnpontGkmphiln :*

XVII nquph pnipp-ywnpuljw-
w6 tpyuwpuwuml wwumbpuwqu-
GtpG m “LVwpuholwbGh hwjni-
ptiwl pnGuwqunpn ntyh MNwnu-
Juwumw G JuwlphG qpymd GG hp
humwwnwgtiw) nt hwpywwmnt dn-
nnypghg L wmlmbuwluwl owlp
Jhdwl unbindonud:

Utiiphutp Ywpnnhynuh 1614
p- UnlGnuyp, hGywtu Guwl Ungutu
Juwpnnhynup 1631 p. gqnmiphtGGb-
np yuwlphG ngpuiwhwiwph hpw-
milp GG mwihu, L jnppnpnid GG
dnnnypnhG hptiGg odwlnulnt-
phiGpn sfuGuyby YubgniG yuwhb-
1 wju Juplnp hnglnp YaGunnpn-
Gp:

1633 p. Swlnp 2niquwytighG
Gwlwymu bt Jwlph Jwlw-
hwjn:

Cun XVII nquph wywwdiw-
ghp Unwpty Funphdtgnt Julpl
wjlpwl fuwpfuny Yyhdwlmd kp,
npn Swlynp 2ninuytighG unhw-
o hhiGnyhG yopujunnmgny k
tijtinighG m Gopngmyd hwdiwhpp
wmwppbp dwubpp U htinumd

scripts, encyclicals and epistles
give us, without notable interrup-
tion, the continuous historical pic-
ture of the Monastery from the
15th century to our times.

In 1427 Grigor Aknetsi men-
tions the Monastery with its three
churches and qualifies them as
“famous”. » The Yerevan
Manuscript . ~ Depository
(Matenadaran) as well as the New
Julfa library have many manu-
scripts produced in the Monastery
of St. Stepannos Nakhavka dating
from the

Dating from the 15th and 16th
centuries. These testify to a monas-
tic environment where the intellec-
tual and spiritual activities were
earnestly pursued.*

As a result of the lengthy hos-
tilities between the Ottoman
Empire and Persia and the subse-
quent forced resettlement of
Nakhichevan Armenians in Persia
during the 17th century the
Monastery faced serious financial
problems. An encyclical dated
1614 by Melikset Catholicos and
an epistle dated 1631 issued by
Catholicos Movses III Tatevatsi
formally give authority to the
Monastery to raise funds from the
faithful for the preservation of the
spiritual centre.

In 1633 Hagop Jughayetsi was
installed as the Father Superior of
the Monastery. According to the
17th century historian Arakel
Davrizhetsi the Monastery build-
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ing was in such as state of disrepair
that the Superior was compelled to
rebuild the whole church and reno-
vate different parts of the complex.
Further more he installed pipes to
bring drinking water to the
Monastery from a nearby spring.
These large-scale constructions
lasted 12 years. An inscription on
the Northern corner of the Eastern
wall of the church mentions that
The construction began in the year
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1643 and ended in the year 1655”.

The present configuration of
both the Monastery and the church
are the result of this reconstruction
effort. In 1655 Hagop Jughayetsi
was elected as Catholicos of All
Armenians and moved to St.
Etchmiadzin. The Monastery
Superiors Hovhannes, Petros and
Hagop Shambetsi undertook fur-
ther construction. The Western for-
tifications of the Monastery and
the bell-tower were re-built as well
as the refectory and the Monks’
cells.

In 1759 under the rule of
Father Michael an earthquake
destroyed the roof of the church,
damaged the cells and wrecked the
southern side of the fortifications.
The very same year and later in
1780 Hagop Shamakhetsi® and
Ghoukas (Lucas) Catholicos con-
firm the financial problems faced
by the Monastery in their encycli-
cals. About fifty years later in
1826, during the" leadership of
Father Superior Sarkis the church
and particularly its interior was
renovated, frescoes were executed
by the painter Nagash Hovnathan
giving the church a renewed splen-
dour.

The Russo-Persian hostilities
ended in 1828 under the Treaty of
Torkamanchai. By virtue of this
treaty the river Arax became the
international border between the
two countries. The consequences
of this Treaty were dire for the
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Monastery, since it was deprived
of the support of the Armenians of
Nakhichevan and the levies paid
by the Armenians of the Goghtan
province. To avert crisis economic
aid was given to the Monastery by
the Persian Fath-Ali Shah and his
Regent Abbas Mirza. They gave
the Monastery the lands of the
Armenian-inhabited village of
Darashamb.” 1In 1840 the bell-
tower was once again damaged by
an earthquake and was repaired in
1845. The church roof underwent
further repairs between 1865 and
1866.

Between the years 1917 and
1920 on four different occasions
the Turkish inhabitants plundered
the Monastery and set the library
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pwiwulbpG nm hntyp Udt0wj)G
{wyng Jupnnhynu &-lnpg Q. On-
ntipstwGhG:*

1983 p-hg whmwywl «Uh-
pwuk dbwphwlqh» (Upwynyph
duwnwlqnphil) hwunmwwumni-
ptiwl Ynnihg Julpmy ytpwin-
mgmpbwl wuwwnwlpltp GG
nwnpit]: UwulGuinpuwwtu  Gn-
pngity GG Gytntignt mwGhpG nu
Jupwyhg fugtipp: «Gpyhp b dw-
Ynyp» quqiwlbtpymphilp, nw-
phGtp pwpmGuly whwquiqb)
Jwlph Juwlquinp yhGwlh
dwuhl n gpwiwhwiwph hwuny-

pn mpwiwnpb] wju qnpohG:

fwpmwpwwybmniphibp:
Juwlpp hp hwdwpbw punwG-
yhiGh junwlwaqony, ywpuuwjw-
thwy b, wGynGatppp hGswtu L
wnlbjtwl nt hhwhuwyhG wyww-
tpp Yhuwlynp wpnwpwylpng
wipwgruo:’

G fuwinp dmupp qubmad L
Jwlph wpldnunpmd” hwiwihpp
dwubiph pwdwlnn Ghpu pGHwo
nwnpwoniptiwG dte:

Juwlpp pwdwliwd Lt bptp
dwutinh: Uh9ohG wwpwopnd E
untnph upwhn, npntinhg wuwmp-
duwlGtpp pwpdpwlnd GG nbwh
pwnwuhi( Juwdwpwowol fun-
hw(ngp: QuwmhdwlGtph Gpyn
Unnuibpnud, Gpyne hwpytnh ypuwyg

on fire. After the First World War a
number of Armenians from
Darashamb village returned to
their ancestral homes. A few fami-
lies elected to settle within the con-
fines of the Monastery. In 1948-
1949 some of these families were
repatriated to Armenia while the
others chose to move to Tabriz. In
his letter to the Catholicos of All
Armenians Gevorg Chorekchian
dated 1948 Father Tigran
Darbinian gives detailed descrip-
tion of the damages inflicted on the
Monastery, the famine and the suf-
ferings of the villagers.

Since 1983 the Iranian State
Agency  “Mirase’  Farhangi”
(Cultural Heritage) has made funds
available for the renovation of the
Monastery. The church roofs as
well as the cells have been reno-
vated. The Paris based Armenian
organisation “Land and Culture
Organisation-LCO” (Organisation
Terri et Culture - OTC) has been
relentlessly warning everyone
about the precarious state of the
Monastery and the urgent necessi-
ty of raising funds for it restora-
tion.

Architecture of the
Monastery. The Monastery build-
ings are grouped in two internal
courtyards, the whole complex is
square in shape and is equipped
with fortifications having semi-
rotunda towers.” The main
entrance is located on the West
within the exterior recess whereby
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wnwpptp dhoniptiwdip wmGnbuw-
Jwi pwdGh utGhwlyGhpG GG:
Juwlph hpwuhuwjhG pwdGh
yhGupnlnd Up. Uwmbtthw(nu
‘Lwhuwyyuwy tybntghG t, nphG
Yhg U hp m wwppuwh dhol pa-
Jqwo nmwpwopnyd t qubmy jb-
nwqujnid witjugiwd vhwlwt,
pwnuihp Yuwiwnpltpny owoly-
o MNonnu-Ntwmpnu tytinkghG:
Uwjp tytntgnt hwpwind
qulquiuwunmi t, nph wnwohG
tpynt hwpytipp pwnwGyhiG GG,
huy tpypnpn hwplyp punjuguo
E mp Juiwwpwy uhtGtphg, n-
nnGg Ypwj Guuwd L upwowjp
Ytnupp:
UplbbwG wwpuwhG Yhg'
JwlwywGGtph fugtp Ga:
Lwiwhph hwpwmd, YhGwu-
pnGwjwl pwih wplininpnmud
JwlwlwGGbph Gplywp L Gpy-
hwipy fugtinG GG, hwpumy” Jw-
Gwhon plwlwpw(l m dbnwq-
puwwnnilp, hul wplbpmd dw-
hw@ hpfuwGh upwhp, vbnubw-
wnniG0 n jupwyhg vkGtwyGbpn:
Gltntgnt wwwmbtpl wpnw-
pmun Juwnpmguwud Gl uppwwnw)
pwg L uniq updwqn)i Ypwpw-
nhg, huy Gepup wnpruwwwwm £ L
otithiwo Ypwpwnwiuny:
GltntghG, npuhg pwnwi-
yhGh, Gtpuhg huwswdl, tonwp-
uhn, snpu Gpyhwpywlh wowG-
nuubtpny L 2tumwo funpulng
YtGumpnGuqiptip 2tGp E:
Gltnbgm YtGwmpnGmd pwp-
dnwgnn puipniyp 16 GhunwGh t,
nnh Yypwy Gunwd b hnghwpwél
Jtinupny wwnpuing qiptipn:

the complex is divided into two.
The Monastery is made up of three
sections. The middle section is the
entrance, which leads to the main
hall from where a stairway leads to

~an arched kitchen with four

columns. On either side of the
stairway lie the two floors with
various rooms, which act as larders
and food storing facilities.

The church of Stepannos
Nakhavka is located in the north-
ern enclosure. The single nave
church of St. Paul and St. Peter
with its slate covered arches was
later built adjacent to the main
church in the area between the
church and the fortification walls.
The bell-tower is-located to the
south of the main church. The first
two floors of the bell-tower are
square shaped and the third floor is
made of eight arched columns that
support the capped cupola.

The cells adjacent to the east-
ern walls are monks’ cells. In the
Southern courtyard of the complex
there are further monks’ cells,
which are two storied. Next to
them are the Father Superior’s
quarters and the library. The Vahan
Mamikonian hall and the refectory
are situated to the east.

The exterior of the church is
faced with polished tufa stone of
light and dark brown colour. The
interior is brick covered with lime
aggregate. From the exterior the
church looks square but inside it is
cross shaped and three apsed, with
a central dome. The side apses are
seven pillared and the vestries in
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Glbtntignt wpwwphlG G-
JuwlGtpn hymuytG hnphgnGu-
Jwl qupnugowhny, tpynt Jw-
utinh G0 pwdwlnd: Gltntgn
wplimbwl Swiwwmp wwppbp-
i £ dhwlbphg ninnuhwjtw-
gniphiln 2tipwmnn’ Ghpu pGywo b-
ntp funppbipny, npnlp ppowig-
o b6 yudwplitpny L Yhuwlnp
tphgny: Gpym wpuwphG funp-
2tpp owoltwod bl GthpuwwnniGhph
L nijunwinplGtph wpdwGuqghp
fuwspwptipny: GhtGwpnGuywb
funppnud Glbintignt UnunpG £ w-
qnithughGtiph Gthpwo thwjnt
qtintighly nmnp:

Swuliwl fuwspwpbp qup-
nupmy GG Gul Gybntgnt wnplb)-
tiw( L hwpuwiwjhG wuwwmbnpp:

Uplbitiwl dwjuwunnmd fun-
pwih fuwswpl wllwwmp ypow-
(wltwo L qupnupwlnuyGtpny,
nphg ytp b quGnud Julpnp
funphpnuGynn pwpdpwpwlnu-
Un’ «UwmbtthwGnuh pwpynont-
up:UnplbijtiwG  Swliwwp  w-
wpunid £ qupngupwlnuiyGb-
pny L 2tGph wwhwww6 wpotw-
pwnny:

{tnthg huy npwnpmphil
qnuinn btntgnt quptipp JuwGw-
Ju G hwdwihpnud hpfunn hwGqu-
dwlp mGh:

16 GhunmwGh pipniyp hw-
pnun b qupnuuhtGtpny L qup-
nuiwdwplibpny, fuwspuwp L
JupnbwlyGtpny, hpbyuwyGb-
nny, Ywulwinpuwwtu® 16 upptiph
pwpénpwpwlnuyGbpny:

Unpliniinpmy” 3hunwu Lphu-
wmnuh, wplbjppmyd 3nyhwGitu-
UlYpwsh, hhiwhund® Uwphwd
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the two corners are two storied.
The central drum of the church has
16 columns and is covered with
fan shaped capped dome.

The exterior facades of the
church are divided into two sec-
tions by means of interwoven,
ornamental stripes. The western
fazade differs from the others by
having three recesses, which are
capped by arches and semi-circular
stripes. The decorative Khachkars
donated by the church benefactors
and pilgrims are installed in the
two outside recesses. The central
recess leads to the main entrance of
the church with its elaborately
carved wooden door donated by
the population of the town of
Agulis. Scores of Khachkars deco-
rate the eastern and southern wall
of the church.

On the eastern fasade, the altar
ogive is framed by decorative
carvings above which one can see
an important carving relating to the
Monastery, that of the stoning of St
Stepannos Nakhavka. The eastern
fazade ends with carving of roses
and an eagle — the guardian of the
Monastery.

Viewing from a distance, the
attention is drawn to the dome of
the church, which dominates the
Monastery complex.

The 16 pillars of the drum and
the interconnecting arches are
reach with decorative carvings,
Khachkars, roses and angels, in
particular with the carved statues
of the 16 saints. These consist of
the carvings of Jesus Christ on the



UunmwowdGh, hwpwmd™ 9pp-
gnp Lontuunnpsh L juwonprpupwin
12 wnwptwGtph pwpdpwpwG-
nuyGbpn:

Edpniyp wiwpunind kE hny-
hwpwdél Ytnupny, nph gppnnGb-
pp  (ephnpnw() Yulnwlwlbpy
wnpdwGhybtin GG, huy hnghwpGb-
nh wGyhitGGophG YwlqGtgruo
GG pwpwytpm plynp fuwshn:

GutintighG Gtpuhg otthiwo
t, nph Yypwy wmtin-ntn wywhwwi-
1] G0 XIX nuph npdGuGyupGb-
nh WGwgnpnGtin:

1 fuudwotwmG b., Utp {GniphiGGhpp,
«Pwlwuknp», 1902, N4, 15 98:

2 NuitwG <., Uwnwpquw Lwuwyywgh
JwlphG YnbGrnuylupp, «dwlntu
wiuoptiwy», 1941, ke 230-234:

3 duwthwqyui £,, Gpynt Gopwjwjn
hilvwGulwG jumhyGhp, «Rwlptp
UwunbtGwnwupwmbh» ,
N66nlwG,1962,k9 391:

4 NuytiwG <., Vwudwywbh yubpbpp,
«wlntu Uduoptiw)»,1941, ko 204:
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4243, ptinp 4-5:

7 Hartmut Hofrichter, Das Klosier
Sdepannos Nachawega in der iranis-
chen Provinz Aserbaidschan «Revue
des fitudes Armeniennes, IX, Paris,
1972, t9 193-239:

western column, John the Baptist
on the eastern, Mary Mother of
God on the northern and St.
Gregory the Illuminator on the
southern columns. The 12 apostles
are carved on the remaining
columns. Stone crosses seat on the
corners of the fan shaped cupola.

The interior of the church is
plastered on the surface of which,
in some places the remains of the
19th century frescoes are still visi-
ble. The paintings belong to the
school of Hovnatanians, who deco-
rated the churches of the Goghtan
province in the 18th and 19th cen-
turies.
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3 H. Papazian, “Yerku norahayt Il-
Khanian Yarlikner”, Banber
Matenadarani”, No. 6, 1962,p. 391

4 H. Voskean, “Monasteries of
Nakhjevan”, “Handes Amsorya”,
1941, p. 204 )

5 H. Papazian, “Yerku norahayt Il-
Khanian Yarlikner”, “Banber
Matenadarani”, No. 6, 1962, p. 392

6 Armenian State Archives No. 409, list
1, file 4243, p.p. 4-5

7 Hartmut Hofrichter, Das Klosier
Sdepannos Nachawega in der iranis-
chen Provinz Aserbaidschan «Revue
des fitudes Armeniennes, IX, Paris,
1972, t9 193-239:
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